
High Peak Borough Council

COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE AGENDA

Date: Wednesday, 28th November, 2018

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue: The Cafe - Pavilion Gardens, Buxton

20 November 2018

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. To receive Disclosures of Interest on any matters before the Committee 
i) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
ii) Other Interests

3. Any matters referred to the Committee under the call-in procedure 

4. Minutes of the previous meeting 3 - 6

5. Household Waste Bin Charges 7 - 14

6. Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 3 - Transfer of Services - Street 
Cleansing & Grounds Maintenance 15 - 20

7. Select Committee Work Programme 21 - 22

8. Exclusion of press and public 
To resolve that the press and public be excluded from the meeting during 
consideration of the following item of business as there may be disclosure of 
exempt information as defined in Part I of Schedule 12A of the Local Government 
Act 1972

9. Any questions referred to the Executive Member (Democratic Services to be 
advised of any questions at least 4 days prior to the meeting) 

PART II
10. Leisure Centre Operating Contract Award 23 - 178

SIMON BAKER
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Public Document Pack



Membership of Community Select Committee
Councillor S Young (Chair) Councillor K Sizeland (Vice-Chair)
Councillor R Atkins Councillor C Boynton
Councillor D Greenhalgh Councillor J Haken
Councillor P Hardy Councillor C Johnson
Councillor D Kerr Councillor R Quinn
Councillor E Siddall Councillor J Wharmby



1 
 

 High Peak Borough Council 
 
 

COMMUNITY SELECT COMMITTEE 
 
 

Meeting: Wednesday, 3 October 2018 at 6.30 pm in The Octagon Lounge - Pavilion 
Gardens, Buxton 
 

Present: Councillor S Young (Chair)  
 

 Councillors R Atkins, D Greenhalgh, J Haken, P Hardy, C Johnson, D Kerr, 
R Quinn, E Siddall and K Sizeland 
 
Councillors Ashton, Barrow (until 7.30 p.m.) and McCabe were also in 
attendance. 
 
 

19/20 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
(Agenda Item 4) 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the minutes of the meeting held on 8 August 2018 be approved as a 
correct record. 
 

19/21 NORTH DERBYSHIRE CCG - CARE CLOSER TO HOME UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 5) 
 
Jonathan Wardle, Senior Commissioning Manager from North Derbyshire 
CCG was in attendance to provide members with an update around the 
Better Care Closer to Home project, as well as issues around access to 
mental health beds following the closure of Spencer Ward. 
 
Members were given an overview of the aims of the Joined Up Care Project, 
which was a place based approach to keeping people healthy in partnership 
with the NHS, local councils and the voluntary and community sector.  There 
are eight Place Alliances within Derbyshire, the High Peak being one 
(excluding Glossop), and reference was made to the unique patient flows 
from the area into Greater Manchester and Stockport.  Place Alliances focus 
on supporting people to stay well for longer through a consistent set of work 
areas and a focus on what local people need in that area, and through the 
promotion of healthy choices, healthy environments and resilient 
communities.  The care principles supporting the vision were to keep people 
safe and healthy, at home and independent, avoiding institutional care 
where appropriate. A person centred approach is taken, with people being 
involved in their own care and the design of services.  A Place Board sets 
the framework for the Place Alliances, with the involvement of key local 
decision makers.  The aims of the project included high quality co-ordinated 
care at home and in the community, targeted support and improved 
outcome for frail older people and their carers, reduced avoidable 
admissions and re-admissions, reduced admissions from care homes and 
healthier communities.  Within High Peak, there was a particular focus on 
falls as there were a higher than average number within the area.  This 
included raising awareness and understanding of how to prevent falls Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Community Select Committee 
Wednesday, 3 October 2018 

 

2 
 

among older people, different levels of intervention for each community and 
support including awareness packs and falls champions.  Specific 
communication and engagement was being undertaken within each Place. 
 
Members expressed concern regarding the reduction in local services 
including GPs and district nurses, and issues such as isolation are being 
exacerbated by reductions in bus services.  The view was expressed that 
there was little integration between services and lack of communication 
which needed to be addressed.  It was also commented that community 
development work was required to encourage community resilience which is 
at the centre of the Place approach.   
 
Regarding access to functional beds at Stockport, members were advised 
that a protocol had now been put in place confirming who is responsible for 
the beds, namely, Pennine Health Care, and there are 8 functional mental 
health beds, 4 for those aged under 65 years.  There were 32 beds at 
Walton, and some were always occupied by High Peak patients.  Specific 
numbers would be circulated. 
 
Regarding Better Care Closer to Home, the number of beds at Fenton Ward 
would be reduced from 16 – 8 after the winter period in the new year. 6 beds 
would be opening at Thomas Fields which would be community support 
beds, which would be carer led but not 24 hour nursing beds. Once the beds 
on Fenton Ward had been closed, staff would be available to provide extra 
care in the community for people within their own homes.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the presentation be received with thanks, and further clarification 
around the numbers of admissions to the functional beds at Stockport and 
Walton be circulated in due course. 
 

19/22 DERBYSHIRE POLICE UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 6) 
 
Inspector Nick Reason provided the committee with an update on the work 
of Derbyshire Police in the area.  There were two main stations within High 
Peak at Glossop and Buxton where full time officers and the Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams (SNT) were based.  The SNT in Chapel en le Frith 
was to be co-located at the fire station, which would not be used as a police 
station, but rather as a base for the SNT.  There had been a change of 
priorities where more education was on-going around cyber crime, and the 
community support officers were now more digitally enabled.  There would 
be particular emphasis on drug dealing, cross boarder crime and drink 
driving. 
 
It was suggested that online crime could be targeted more efficiently if it 
would dealt with centrally, to which reference was made to national 
campaigns and Action Fraud. 
 
Concern was expressed regarding vehicles parked on pavements in 
Glossop and the use of mobile phones while driving. 
 Page 4



Community Select Committee 
Wednesday, 3 October 2018 

 

3 
 

Reference was also made to vulnerable communities and increased drug 
dealing in particular areas, and suggested that random patrols would be 
effective in the area. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That Inspector Reason be thanked for his presentation, and a further update 
would be welcomed next year. 
 

19/23 ROYAL BANK OF SCOTLAND CLOSURES - BUXTON AND CHAPEL EN 
LE FRITH 
(Agenda Item 7) 
 
Branches of the Royal Bank of Scotland were to close, in Buxton and 
Chapel en le Frith on 30 January 2019. 
 
Representatives of the Royal Bank of Scotland had been invited to attend 
this meeting to discuss the matter, and Members were disappointed that no 
representatives of RBS were in attendance. 
 
The following comments were made in respect to the closures: 
 

•       Concern regarding the effect on older people in the area who may be 
less comfortable with using online banking, and are probably more 
likely to use cheques and therefore visit branches. It was requested 
that RBS consider the provision of a mobile branch in the affected 
areas, which given their rural location, would be greatly beneficial to 
residents and the wider community. 
 

•       It was acknowledged that some banking transactions could be done 
via local post offices.  However, concern was expressed regarding 
the accessibility of some branches within the affected area.  
Particular reference was made to Chapel en le Frith post office which 
has poor access for the disabled. 
 

•       ATMs – although there are two ATMs outside the bank in Chapel en 
le Frith, the comment was made that one is frequently out of use due 
to scamming. 

 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the above comments be forwarded to the Royal Bank of Scotland 
for their consideration. 

 
 

19/24 DECLARATION OF AN AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA ON PART 
OF THE WOODHEAD ROAD (A628) TINTWISTLE 
(Agenda Item 8) 
 
The Committee considered the making of an Air Quality Management Area 
along the Woodhead Road in Tintwistle, from the Bank Lane / Woodhead 
Road Junction and Old Road / Woodhead Road Junction. 
 Page 5



Community Select Committee 
Wednesday, 3 October 2018 

 

4 
 

Monitoring was also in place along the A57 and A6, the results of which 
were awaited.   
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Executive be recommended to make an Order under Section 83 of 
the Environment Act 1995 declaring and Air Quality Management Area in 
the form attached at appendix 2 to the report. 
 

19/25 ENVIRONMENTAL ENFORCEMENT ANNUAL UPDATE 
(Agenda Item 9) 
 
The Committee considered an update on environmental enforcement and 
proposed changes to the levels of the fixed penalty notices issued by the 
Council.  An updated list of enforcement activity was circulated at the 
meeting. 
 
The Executive Councillor commented on the increased numbers of fixed 
penalty notices issued, and that the proposed increased fixed penalty 
amount of £120 would enable more enforcement and education to be 
provided. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Executive be requested to: 

• Note the content of the report; 
• Approve the changes to the fixed penalty payments and 

arrangements. 
 

19/26 SELECT COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME 
(Agenda Item 10) 
 
It was requested that the future of Glossop Post Office be monitored, and 
that the CCG be requested to circulate the additional information requested 
in writing, rather than being asked to attend the next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That the Select Committee Work Programme be noted. 
 
 
The meeting concluded at 8.20 pm 
 
 
 
 
 
CHAIRMAN 

 
 

Page 6



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to Community Select Committee

28 November 2018

TITLE: Household Waste Bin Charges

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Councillor Thrane - Executive Councillor for 
Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Nicola Kemp – Operations Manager (Contract 
Management)

WARDS INVOLVED: All

Appendices Attached – Revised bin charges motion

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 A motion (as attached at Appendix 1) was presented to Council at its meeting 
on the 13th September requesting a review of household waste bin charges. It 
was agreed at this meeting to refer the motion to the Community Select 
Committee for consideration.

2. Recommendation

2.1 That the Community Select Committee recommends the Executive keep the 
present system of charging for bin replacements in line with the existing fees 
and charges policy.

3. Executive Summary

3.1 There are over 123,700 household waste bins in use across the borough, the 
average cost to a replace a standard wheeled bin is £30. 

3.2 Many local authorities have been successfully charging for replacement bins 
for many years. Such policies were developed in line with the Environmental 
Protection Act 1990 s46 (3) which enables an authority to determine if the 
provision of receptacles for waste be made free of charge to occupiers, that 
they be provided to an occupier upon receipt of payment or that it requires the 
occupier to provide them.

Page 7

Agenda Item 5



3.3 A £30 charge for replacement and new bins was introduced from 1st April 
2017. This charge was approved as part of the annual Budget and Updated 
Medium Term Financial Plan report (Appendix D fees and charges) which was 
presented to Council on 16th February 2017 taking effect from April 2017.  

3.4 The impact of introducing bin charges in 2017-18 was a 63% fall in the total 
number of new and replacement bins requested and a 75.5% drop in requests 
to replace a bin that had gone missing or been stolen. Fees for 2018-19 were 
reviewed, as a result we reduced the charge for a small black refuse bin (140 
litres) (£25) and increased the charge for a larger refuse bin (360 litres) (£35). 
The aim was to encourage waste minimisation aiming to increase the 
Council’s recycling performance. 

3.5 The financial impact of charging for all bins, except those damaged or lost 
during collection, means that all costs of wheeled bin provision are covered via 
our fees and charges structure. 

4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities 

4.1 By levying charges for new or replacement bins to households, the Council will 
be able to meet financial challenges and provide value for money.

5. Alternative Options

5.1 There are two options available in regards to the proposed motion:

1. Retain the current charging policy, and levy charges for the replacement of 
all bins that are damaged or go missing with the exception of those reported 
by collection staff. (Recommended)
2. Amend the charging policy as per the motion, thus providing residents with 
a free of charge replacement bin when theirs becomes damaged or goes 
missing. The initial impact of such a decision could be in excess of £11,640 
per annum based on 2017-18 data but would be expected to rise considerably 
in future years. (Not recommended).

Keith Parker
Head of Operational Services

Web Links and
Background Papers

Location Contact details

2017-18 Budget & Updated 
Medium Term Financial 
Plan report 16.2.17  2018-
19 Budget & Updated 
medium Term Financial 
Plan report 20.2.18

Website Nicola Kemp
Operations Manager 
(Contract Management)
nicola.kemp@highpeak.go
v.uk

Page 8



6. Detail

6.1 With in excess of 41,740 properties in the High Peak and 98.8% of properties 
using wheeled bins, there are over 123,700 bins in use across the borough. 
The majority of dwellings are supplied with a 240l black, brown and green 
lidded bin as standard with larger bins available for families of five or more or 
where a medical condition generates additional waste. In flats and apartments, 
dwellings share larger, industrial sized bins.

6.2 Wheeled bins have been used in the High Peak for around twenty years when 
black bins for general waste were introduced. Green lidded bins were rolled 
out across the borough from 2006 onwards and brown bins for recycling in 
June/July 2012. 

6.3 Requests for replacement bins from residents have been increasing year on 
year. Bins were always supplied to a property free of charge, upon request on 
the assumption that the property genuinely needed a new bin. In 2015-16 the 
Council received 4,529 waste container requests equating to 3,566 wheeled 
bins of varying sizes and colours. The remaining 963 requests related to 
kerbside boxes (used to collect glass) or bags. The most common reason for a 
new bin request was as a result of the bin being damaged due to wear and 
tear (23.3%) or as the bin had gone missing or been stolen (21.12%). The 
remaining requests were for bins needed at new properties, by new occupiers 
or as a result of residents wishing to obtain an additional, larger or smaller bin. 

6.5 In 2016-17 requests received for wheeled bins increased to 3,826, 23.3% 
were as a result of the bin being damaged, a further 18.69% was a result of 
bins going missing or being stolen.  The cost to the Council of supplying bins 
across the borough was approximately £100,000 per annum. As our bins 
continue to age, the total future replacement costs to the Council would be in 
the region of £3.6 million. 

6.6 Attempts have been made to try and tackle the increasing numbers of bins 
reported as missing or stolen. Up until around five years ago HPBC required 
residents to report missing bins to the Police in order to obtain a crime or lost 
property reference number, the aim being to discourage false reports. 
However, around 2011/12 Derbyshire Police wrote to HPBC asking that this 
procedure ceased with immediate effect as it placed unnecessary pressure on 
their resources.

6.7 Evidence shows that nearly a quarter of all requests received by the Council 
are as a result of the wheeled bin being damaged. It is actually very difficult for 
the collection staff to physically cause damage to a bin during collection, the 
primary reason for this volume of replacements will therefore be as a result of 
the bins age. Most common damage to bins occurs at the point of moving 
parts i.e. hinges or wheels, it would be expected therefore that as the majority 
of bins were issued to properties between twelve and twenty years ago that 
failure rates will continue to increase over time. 

Page 9



7. Introduction of charges for bins

7.1 Due to the increasing costs being incurred by this Council in regards to 
replacing wheeled bins, consideration was given as to how these increasing 
costs could be mitigated. Research identified many other local authorities 
including neighbouring Stockport Metropolitan Borough Council, have been 
successfully charging for replacement bins for many years. Derbyshire Dales 
District Council and Staffordshire Moorlands District Council introduced 
charges for bins from April 2017.

7.2 Such policies have been developed in line with the Environmental Protection 
Act 1990 s46 (3) which enables an authority to determine if the provision of 
receptacles for waste be made free of charge to occupiers, that they be 
provided to an occupier upon receipt of payment or that it requires the 
occupier to provide them. 

7.3 Charges for all replacement or new wheeled bins were introduced effective of 
April 2017. All fees and charges levied by HPBC are subject to approval as 
part of the annual Budget and Updated Medium Term Financial Plan report 
presented to Council. The charge for wheeled bins featured in Appendix D 
Proposed fees and charges as was presented to Council on 16th February 
2017 to take effect in April 2017.  

7.4 The £30 charge levied from 1st April 2017 covered all small, standard or large 
sized domestic bins. This charge reflected the actual costs to HPBC of 
providing this service.

7.5 Exclusions for bin charges do apply, this includes instances where:
 a bin is damaged during collection or it fell into the back of the collection 

vehicle - if such occurs the crew should record this and leave a card for 
the householder advising what has happened and confirming that a 
new bin will be delivered within 10 working days. 

 a brown bin is split - a defect has been identified in our supplied brown 
bins, whilst the manufacturer disputes this, we have experienced many 
bins suffering splits down the body of the bin. We have replaced all 
such bins free of charge. To date the manufacturer has provided over 
1,000 replacements bins to HPBC free of charge.

7.6 In line with the exclusions detailed above, the Council replaced 272 bins in 
2017-18 and 215 bins in 2018-19 to date of varying colours.

7.7 Following the first year of charges being levied, the fees for 2018-19 were 
reviewed. As a result we reduced the charge for a small black refuse bin (140 
litres) to £25 and an increased the charge for a larger refuse bin (360 litres) to 
£35. We hoped this would support our policies of waste minimisation and 
would support the Council’s desire to increase the boroughs recycling 
performance. The standard charge for all other domestic sized bins remained 
at £30.

7.8 From April 2017 up to the end of October 2018 the Council received 33 
comments relating to our bin charging policy. The majority of these were 

Page 10



logged as the resident was unhappy to pay for a new bin as they believed the 
damage was caused during collection and therefore they were not at fault.  
Please note that a complaint against a policy decision, is initially logged as a 
comment. 

7.9 Where the cause of damage is disputed or not clear AES, have when possible 
offered a preloved (second hand) bin as a replacement free of charge.  
Unfortunately as the majority of bins they collect in are damaged, such an offer 
is difficult to make in all instances due to limited stock availability.

7.10 HPBC supported by Alliance Environmental Services Ltd (AES) is currently in 
the process of procuring a fleet of refuse collection vehicles which will be used 
to deliver frontline waste and recycling services across the borough. These 
vehicles are being procured with 360 degree CCTV cameras which will not 
only provide benefits to the collection crews in regards to health & safety but 
will provide evidence to AES in regards to whether a bin was lost or damaged 
during collection. These vehicles are anticipated to be in received and in use 
by summer 2019.

8. The impact of introducing charges for bins

8.1 The table below details the numbers of bins requested in recent years and the 
two most common reasons; bins going missing or being stolen or due to 
damage. Please note this table excludes those bins the council has replaced 
free of charge.

8.2 It is clear from the information above, that the introduction of charges has had 
a significant impact on the total number of bins requested since 2017-18. This 
suggests that prior to charges being introduced, some residents were 
choosing to have a new bin rather than actually needing one. 

8.3 Overall requests received in 2017-18 were down by 63% on the previous year. 
In addition the numbers requested as a result of the bin being missing/stolen 
were down by 75.5% suggesting that residents are taking more responsibility 
for their bins. 

8.4 A new property or new occupier is now the commonest reasons for requesting 
a new bin from the Council (43% in 2017-18, 44.6% in 2018-19 to date). It is 
difficult to ascertain why the remaining fall in bin requests has occurred, other 
than assuming the charge is putting residents off changing their bins and 
waiting until it is absolutely necessary for an exchange to occur.

 

Total no. of 
container 
requests

No. of bins 
requested - 
missing/stolen

No of bins 
requested  
- damaged 
due to wear 
and tear

1.4.18 - 
30.10.18 1542 98

288

2017-18 1428 175 213
2016-17 3826 715 892

Page 11



8.4 The Council only became aware of splits appearing in the brown bins in early 
2017, and as a result replaced 145 bins free of charge in this year, this 
increased in 2017-18 to 326. It should be noted that the numbers of brown 
bins replaced due to splitting has been excluded from the figures detailed in 
the table at 8.1 from 2017-18 onwards, such instances would previously have 
been recorded as damaged due to wear and tear. 

8.3 As a result of residents being charged for new or replacement bins, the 
charging policy generated £37,351 in 2017-18 and in 2018-19 to date £34,299. 
This income fully covers the bin replacement costs the Council would 
otherwise have incurred.

8.4 If the Council’s charging policy changes to provide all residents a free of 
charge bin if theirs is damaged, goes missing or is stolen through no fault of 
their own, the financial impact to the Council would be in the region of £11,640 
per annum based on volumes in 2017-18. 

8.5 The figures provided at 8.1 highlights that the number bins required to replace 
a damaged bin in 2018-19 is increasing and is currently higher than requests 
in 2017-18. The cost of replacing these bins and those stolen or missing to 
date in 2018-19 would already be £11,580. 

8.6 Providing all damaged or missing/stolen bins free of charge could be open to 
abuse by residents, this could revert the impact charging has had on the 
volumes of bin requests returning numbers to those previously seen in 2016-
17.

8.7 In addition as we know our bins are aging and therefore more likely to become 
damaged as time passes, the financial impact of such a change in policy as 
proposed by the motion, would further increase the financial burden to the 
Council year on year at a time when pressure on resources continues to be 
challenging.

Page 12



Appendix 1

Motion to be tabled for debate at High Peak Borough Council’s                                      
Full Council Meeting on 13th September 2018.

Proposed by Councillor Ray Atkins
Seconded by Councillor David Lomax

“This Council believes that the current system of deciding whether or not to 
charge a householder for replacing a damaged or missing waste bin is 
inconsistent.  

At present, with regard to damaged bins, the Council agrees to bear the cost of a 
damaged bin when it is accepted that the Council’s waste contractor is 
responsible for the damage - otherwise the householder is asked to pay.

On the other hand, the Council asks the householder to pay for replacement of 
all missing bins – regardless of who is culpable.

This Council meeting now resolves that this situation is unacceptable and that  
where there is clear evidence that a householder is not responsible for the 
disappearance of one or more waste bins from their property and, particularly, 
where there is a strong suggestion that the Council may bear responsibility - 
such as on collection day - then the Council should carry the cost.”

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



HIGH PEAK BOROUGH COUNCIL

Report to the Community Select Committee

28th November 2018

Appendices Attached:
Appendix A – AES – Summary of Governance Structure
Appendix B – Outline of services to be transferred to AES in Phase 3

1. Reason for the Report

1.1 The purpose of this report is for the Committee to consider the service 
specification for the services to be transferred to Alliance Environmental 
Service (AES) in the third phase, ensuring that future service delivery meets 
the requirements of the Council.

2. Recommendations

2.1 That the Committee:

 Support the development of the new operating arrangements; and 
 Consider and comment on the service specifications to be transferred in 

phase 3 

3. Executive Summary

3.1 In June 2017 the Executive approved a report approving the establishment of 
the joint venture company for the delivery of Waste Collection, Street 
Cleansing, Grounds Maintenance & Fleet Management Services. This 

TITLE: Alliance Environmental Services (AES) – Phase 
3 – Transfer of Services – Street Cleansing & 
Grounds Maintenance

EXECUTIVE COUNCILLOR: Cllr Emily Thrane – Executive Councillor for 
Finance & Operational Services

CONTACT OFFICER: Andrew Stokes – Executive Director 
(Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

WARDS INVOLVED: Non-Specific

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



confirmed the governance arrangements to allow Alliance Environmental 
Services (AES) to be fully established (these are summarised in Appendix A).

3.2 The first phase of transfer of services which took place in July 2017 was 
focussed on this Council’s waste collection services following the end of the 
contract with Veolia. In April 2018 the Executive approved the transfer of 
services further to be included in phase 2. The second phase included the 
following service functions:

Staffordshire Moorlands
 Waste collection (including communications & promotion)
 Fleet management

High Peak
 Waste communications & promotion
 Fleet management  

3.3 In October 2018 the Executive approved a report that set out the proposed 
transfer of services to be included in phase 3. The third phase includes the 
following service functions:

High Peak & Staffordshire Moorlands
 Street cleansing
 Grounds maintenance 

3.4 As with the second phase, the Executive approved the principle of the transfer 
of these functions and requested the Community Select Committee to 
scrutinise the detailed operational arrangements prior to final approval by the 
Executive in December. The Corporate Select Committee has been requested 
to scrutinise the financial arrangements.

3.5 This report requests that the Committee consider the service specification and 
delivery arrangements for the services to be transferred in the third phase. An 
outline of the services included is set out in Appendix B and will be covered in 
more detail in a presentation at the meeting.  

4. How this report links with Corporate Priorities

4.1 One of the four aims of the Council’s Corporate Plan is “to protect and 
improve the environment”. The successful delivery of this aim will be 
underpinned by the development of the new operating arrangements as 
outlined in this report.

5. Evaluation of Options

5.1 There are no options to consider

Page 16



6. Implications

6.1 Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998)
None

6.2 Workforce
No direct implications

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment
This report has been prepared in accordance with the Council's Equality and 
Diversity policies.

6.4 Financial Considerations
The financial savings plan for AES provides for £1.2 million of on-going 
revenue savings. 

6.5 Legal
The specifications will be developed into detailed schedules that will form 
part of the Service Operating Agreement that sets out the services provided 
by AES to the Council  
 

16.6 Sustainability
None

6.7 External Consultation
Not applicable

6.8  Risk Assessment
Not applicable

ANDREW P STOKES
Executive Director (Transformation) & Chief Finance Officer

Background Papers Location Contact details

Nicola Kemp – Operational Manager 
(Contract Management)
Tel: 01538 395400 EXT. 4426  
Email: 
nicola.kemp@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk

6.4

Page 17

mailto:nicola.kemp@staffsmoorlands.gov.uk


APPENDIX A

Summary of Governance Arrangements

Page 18



APPENDIX B

Outline of services to be transferred to AES in Phase 3

Street Cleansing Services:
 Litter picking including the removal of drug related litter
 Litter bin installation, replacement and scheduled emptying 
 Emptying of Parish and Town council bins where agreement is in place
 Scheduled highway mechanical street sweeping incl. Council car parks, 

parks, depots, leisure centres and cemeteries
 Removal of fly tipping from the highway, private land (upon request) or council 

land
 Removal of dog fouling in streets, parks and public places
 Removal of dead animals (road kill) from the highway
 Removal of graffiti and fly posting -  from public and private land  where 

applicable
 Installation of new and replacement of damaged street nameplates
 Gritting of council land i.e. car parks, leisure centre car parks and some 

highway areas (HPBC provide on behalf of DCC)
 Enforcement activities – Stencilling, sign erection, gathering evidence, issuing 

FPN’S, court appearances
 Supporting other departments with office moves, large equipment relocation, 

house waste clearances
 Weed spraying on Council  land 
 Highway weed spraying (HPBC provide service on behalf of DCC)
 Bus shelter cleaning
 Gully emptying in depots
 Supporting community litter picks with equipment and staffing resource
 Supporting major tourist events, litter clearance and temporary infrastructure 

i.e. bins
 Gully emptying (HPBC provide contracted service on behalf of DCC)
 Collation of KPI data such as 195 Inspections and Hotspot data
 Closing of height restriction barriers on some car parks
 Undertaking private sweeping for local businesses

Horticulture:
 Maintenance of closed church yards, memorial safety testing
 Maintenance of cemeteries,  grave digging, memorial safety inspections (plus 

records)
 Grounds maintenance services including; mowing, planting, litter picking of 

parks, playing fields and other open spaces
 Playground inspections, maintenance and repairs
 Allotments – management, maintenance, rents, lists 
 Friends group coordination
 Ad hoc restoration, community projects
 Flail mowing (HP provide management of contract on behalf of DCC)
 In Bloom, Keep Britain Tidy & Tidy Village support
 Green Flag applications, assessments

Page 19



Depots:
 Cleansing of depot grounds i.e. sweeping, litter collection
 COTC – waste storage and transfer where applicable

Support functions:
 Lengthsman scheme (SM)
 Out of hours emergency response & standby cover
 Mutual aid arrangements with County council and emergency service 

providers 

Page 20



COMMUNITY
Chairman: Councillor Young 

Vice Chairman: Councillor Sizeland
Lead Officer: M Trillo

Date Items Contact Officer Purpose/Method of 
Consideration

Leisure Centre Operating Contract Award (Part 2) Nicola Kemp
Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 3 - 
Transfer of Services - Street Cleansing & Grounds 
Maintenance

Andrew Stokes

Household Waste Bin Charges Keith Parker
Work Programme

28-Nov-2018

Sport and Physical Activity Strategy Nicola Kemp
Work Programme

6-Feb-2019

Work Programme25-March-
2019

Appointment of Chairman and Vice Chairman
Work Programme

June-2019

Work ProgrammeOct-2019

Community Rights M ForresterTo add in
Update from NWAS NWAS

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 7



COMMUNITY
Update on review of Disabled Facilities Grant DCC
Chartered Institute of Housing Review of Sheltered 
Accommodation

Mary Walker

Non-financial update from Housing Revenue Account 
Business Plan

Helen Core

Fairfield Road Update Mike Towers
Adult Social Care Residential Care Policies and impact 
on HPBC

DCC

Monitoring of Alliance Environmental Services Andrew Stokes
Care Together Programme Update Tameside and Glossop 

CCG (Jessica 
Williams)

Universal Credit Update Mary Walker

P
age 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 49

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 167

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 177

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3, 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 Minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Household Waste Bin Charges
	6 Alliance Environmental Services (AES) - Phase 3 - Transfer of Services - Street Cleansing & Grounds Maintenance
	7 Select Committee Work Programme
	10 Leisure Centre Operating Contract Award
	Appendix A 1 for HPBC Leisure Centre Management
	Appendix A 2 for HPBC Leisure Centre Management
	Appendix A 3 for HPBC Leisure Centre Management
	Appendix A 4 for HPBC Leisure Centre Management


